90388-7

Tue 5/27/2014 9:41 AM

Case # 45435-1- II

In the Supreme Court for the State of Washington

လေးေလ့လ Washington State Supreme Court E MAY 28 2014 Ronald R. Carpenter Clerk

William Scheidler

Appellant/Petitioner

v

Scott Ellerby, Esq.

Defendant/Respondent

Petition for Discretionary Review

Case 09-2-00660-3

Successor Judge Kevin Hull

William Scheidler, Pro Per 1515 Lidstrom Place E. Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 769-8531 billscheidler@wavecable.com

A IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

William Scheidler asks this court to accept review of the decision designated in Part B of this petition.

B DECISION

Petitioner request review of the Court of Appeals II (COA II) ORDER DENYING MOTION TO MODIFY, entered May 1, 2014. Appendix A.

C ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

The COA II's bare order to deny Scheidler's motion to modify the clerks rulings to not file Scheidler's opening brief and then terminated review for non-filing raises the following issues:

1) The COA II ruling denies due process and equal protection:

2) The Clerk is in violation of that portion of RCW 2.32.050(4);the COA II order is wrong.

- The Clerk is in Violation of RAP 1.2 and CAR 6. The COA II order is wrong
- 4) The Justices of the COA II should have disqualified themselves under RCW 2.28.030(1) and CJC 2.11, and transferred this case to another division or court under CAR 21(a,c).

D STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case concerns the Court of Appeals order, noted in B above, denying Scheidler's motion to modify the unilateral actions taken by David Penzoha, clerk of Division II Court of Appeals, who is not a lawyer nor qualified to sit as judge, who ruled: 1) to *not file* Scheidler's opening brief; 2) to falsely characterize the opening brief as non-conforming; 3) to set the matter for hearing before a commissioner, and then 4) to rule on his own motion to terminate review for Scheidler's failure to file an amended brief rather than having the matter heard by a commissioner. Appendix B: Ex 1, 2, 3, respectively.

David Penzoha's unilateral and unlawful decisions were explained to the Court of Appeals in Scheidler's motion to modify, filed 3-24-2014, pages 1-7, and in Scheidler's reply to response, filed 4-4-2014, pages 2-4. The Court has not refuted Scheidler's claims.

The COA II's bare order denying Scheidler's motion to modify without any explanation whatsoever must mean Scheidler's argument the Clerk's rulings are based in fallacious claims, vague allegations unsupported by fact, and are without authority and contrary to law and precedent.

Additionally, the COA II is conflicted with the issues Scheidler presents in his opening brief. Scheidler argues the conduct of David Penzoha and the justices of the COA II in the earlier appeal was unlawful and void for fraud. Appellants 'opening brief' at pages 37-41. The COA II should have transferred this case to either another Division or to the Supreme Court as they would be ruling on their conduct. RCW 2.28.030(1) and CJC 2.11 prohibits judges from ruling on his/her own conduct.

The COA II order denying modification of the Clerks orders deprives Scheidler of his fundamental right to an appeal and a *fair hearing* on the merits by an impartial decision maker.

E ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED

RAP 13.4 states that the Supreme Court will accept discretionary review if the issues meet any one of 4 prerequisites of RAP 13.4(b). Petitioner meets the conditions set by RAP 13.4(b)(1, 3,4) and review should be accepted.

1) **RAP 13.4(b)(1)** The decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court.

Scheidler's right of petition has been 'abridged' by David Penzoha acting unilaterally, unlawfully, under his self-proclaimed power under his own interpretation of court rules. All being in conflict with the holdings of and rules established by the Supreme Court. Scheidler, *petitioner*, has a substantive *right of petition* and it shall never be abridged. See Article 1, Sec 4. Appendix C: Authorities.

The Clerk, by his oath to protect and maintain Scheidler's individual rights, is required by law "to file all papers delivered to him" (See RCW 2.32.050(4)) to insure individuals have a meaningful appeal; as opposed to the clerical duties of .050(4), associated with the mode of filing such papers. The Supreme Court is clear with respect to such rights by the express language of RAP 18.22(b) - court rules supersede statutes only to "procedural" matters in conflict.¹ There are no conflicts between RCW 2.32.050(4) with any Court Rule. Appendix C: Authorities.

Further, the Supreme Court emphasizes this due process right of petition in STATE v. SCHULZE 116 Wn.2d 154, 161 804 P.2d 566

¹ A court will make every effort to reconcile an apparent conflict between a court rule and a procedural statute. STATE v. BLILIE 132 Wn.2d 484 (1997)

"a substantive matter and cannot be amended by a procedural court rule" and in *City of Fircrest v. Jensen 158 Wn. 2d. 384, 419 (2006)* "If the right is substantive, then the statute prevails; if it is procedural, then the court rule prevails." Scheidler's due process right cannot be modified by a court rule as David Penzoha has done.

Cases are to be decided on the merits as RAP 1.2 states or the case disposed by a three judge panel, per CAR 6; and only by explaining the reasons the merits will not be considered as required by

RAP 1.2. Neither of which occurred in this matter.

The COA II was wrong to deny Scheidler's motion to modify without any rationale justifying the clerk's unilateral action.

 RAP13.4(b)(3) A significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved.

"The fundamental requisite of due process of law is the opportunity to be heard...at a meaningful time and in a meaningful manner...the opportunity to be heard *must be tailored to the capacities and circumstances of those who are to be heard.*" Goldberg v Kelly 397 U.S. 254 (1970).

9

The *circumstances* of this case are self-evident – Scheidler has been denied due process as his "opportunity to be heard" has been obstructed by the unlawful actions by the clerk to terminate review under fallacious claims and vague allegations that Scheidler' opening brief didn't meet 'formatting' requirements. Even more egregious, the *circumstance* of this case yield further equal protection issues. Scheidler, pro se, is the only 'individual' involved in this case. *All* others, including defendant, are *officers of the court* who are bound by their oath, RCW 2.48.210 and APR 5(c), to support the WA Constitution. WA constitution Article 1 Sec. 1 mandates, 'governments are established to protect and maintain Scheidler's individual right'. This surely includes Scheidler's Article 1, Sec 4, right of petition as manifest by his brief.

"The broad language of the constitutional provision is self-executing and needs no legislation to vest this power..." STATE EX REL. CLARK v. HOGAN 49 Wn.2d 457 (1956); "All constitutional provisions are self-executing to the extent that they void all action taken in violation of them and preclude enforcement of any statute violating them." PEDERSON v. MOSER 99 Wn.2d 456, 662 P.2d 866

10

Said another way, these *officers of the court* have intentionally abandoned their duty to the constitution by using court rules specifically to injure Scheidler and deny his fundamental right of petition rather than protect him as their lawful duty requires. It is the lawyer who must remedy all that he can. And clearly "clerical issues" of the nature Clerk David Penzoha cites as reasons to deny Scheidler's rights, are matters easily fixed by the lawyers involved who possess both the expertise and the identical information to carry out their duty.

"The judicial system and the administration of justice is dependent on the honesty of attorneys as officers of the court". In re Disciplinary Proceeding Against Poole 156 Wn.2d 196, 201 (2006).

3) **RAP13.4(b)(4)** The petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

Scheidler recognizes the need for procedural rules – rules

promote efficiency, lower court costs and lead to better opinions.

However, when lawyers breach their oath, ... when judges disregard the law and common law precedents in the rulings they make, so as to protect the lawyers who breach their oath, ... and when justices of the appellate courts perjure pleadings and fabricate facts to protect the "legal establishment" rather than protect Scheidler, as argued in petitioners opening brief, the level of harm and complexity in seeking a "redress of grievances" easily overwhelms any expected efficiencies in procedural rules.

It is disingenuous at best, oppressive at worst, to look past the unethical conduct that permeates the "legal system" and overwhelms the good intentions in procedural rules, especially when it is the duty of lawyers, who serve the constitution, to remedy error by their oath to 'never delay a man's cause and to conduct himself with truth and honor' for the protection of individual rights so cases are decided on the merits and upon the truth. The "legal system" is the Supreme Court's responsibility and it needs an immediate overhaul as intended in Article 1, Section 32 by returning to fundamental principles for its remedy.

F CONCLUSION

This court should accept review for the reasons indicated in Part E and order Scheidler's brief to be filed, with any "imperfection in format" cured by the lawyers whose duty is to protect and maintain individual rights. This Court should disqualify the COA II, as the law requires, from hearing this matter and either assume jurisdiction or assign the case to a different division of the COA for a thorough review.

May 23, 2014

Respectfully submitted,

Signature

APPENDICIES

APPENDIX A Copy ORDER DENYING MOTION TO MODIFY

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DIVISION II

WILLIAM SCHEIDLER,

Appellant,

ν.

SCOTT ELLERBY,

Respondent.

No. 45435-1-II ORDER DENYING MOTION TO MODIFY - AH 9: 24 STATE OF ALS

APPELLANT filed a motion to modify a Clerk's ruling dated March 19, 2014, in the above-entitled matter. Following consideration, the court denies the motion. Accordingly, it is

SO ORDERED.

DATED this 15^{+} day of 2014. PANEL: Jj. Worswick, Lee, Melnick

FOR THE COURT:

William Scheidler 1515 Lidstrom Place East Port Orchard, WA, 98366 billscheidler@wavecable.com Workwrick CHIEF JUDGE

Jeffrey Paul Downer Lee Smart PS Inc 701 Pike St Ste 1800 Seattle, WA, 98101-3929 jpd@leesmart.com