Received
Washington State Supreme Court

JUN 2 6 2014
Ronald R. Carpenter
Clerk

SUPREME COURT NO. 90288-7 COURT OF APPEALS NO. 45435-1

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

WILLIAM SCHEIDLER,

Plaintiff/Petitioner,

v.

SCOTT ELLERBY,

Defendant/Respondent.

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

Jeffrey P. Downer, WSBA No. 12625 Of Attorneys for Respondent

LEE SMART, P.S., INC. 1800 One Convention Place 701 Pike Street, Suite 1800 Seattle, WA 98101-3929 (206) 624-7990

III.	ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW		
IV.	STATEMENT OF THE CASE		
	A.	The Clerk of the Court of Appeals properly dismissed Mr. Scheidler's appeal pursuant to RAP 18.9(a) and (b) 2	
	B.	The Court of Appeals properly denied Mr. Scheidler's Motion to Modify the Ruling Dismissing Appeal	
V.	ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED7		
	A.	This Court grants petitions for review in only strict, limited circumstances that RAP 13.4(b) prescribes	
	B.	The Order Denying the Motion to Modify does not conflict with a Supreme Court decision	
	C.	The Order Denying the Motion to Modify raises no constitutional question	
	D.	Mr. Scheidler's petition does not raise an issue of substantial public interest	
	E.	Mr. Scheidler's petition for review is frivolous, and attorney fees should be awarded to Ellerby	
VI.	CON	CLUSION15	

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Page(s)
Cases Batten v. Abrams, 28 Wn. App. 737, 626 P.2d 984 (1981)
City of Fircrest v. Jensen, 158 Wn.2d 384, 143 P.2d 566 (2006) 10
Plummer v. Weil, 15 Wash. 427, 46 P. 648, 649-50 (1896)
Reid v. Dalton, 124 Wn. App. 113, 100 P.3d 349 (2004)
Skamania County v. Woodall, 104 Wn. App. 525, 16 P.3d 701 rev. denied 144 Wn.2d 1021, 34 P.3d 1232 (2001)
State v. Fields, 85 Wn.2d 126, 530 P.2d 284 (1975)
State v. Fitzpatrick, 5 Wn. App. 661, 491 P.2d 262 (1971)
State v. Johnson, 119 Wn.2d 167, 829 P.2d 1082, 1084 (1992) 12
State v. Martintorres, 93 Wn. App. 442, 969 P.2d 501 (1999) 11
State v. Schulze, 116 Wn.2d 154, 804 P.2d 566 (1991)
<i>Tiffany Family Trust Corp. v. City of Kent</i> , 155 Wn.2d 225, 119 P.3d 325 (2005)
Yurtis v. Phipps, 143 Wn. App. 680, 183 P.3d 849 (2008)
Statutes 9 RCW 2.04.190 9 RCW 2.06.040 12
Rules
RAP 10.4(h)
RAP 13.4
RAP 13.4(b)
RAP 13.4(b)(1), (3)
RAP 13.4(b)(3)
RAP 13.4(b)(4)
RAP 18.9
RAP 18.9(a)
RAP 18.9(a), (b)9
Other Authority Wash. Appellate Prac. Deskbook § 27.11 (1998)

I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDING PARTY

Defendant-respondent, Scott Ellerby, asks this Court to deny review of the decision designated in Part II.

II. DECISION BELOW

On May 1, 2014, the Court of Appeals, Division II, denied pro se Plaintiff-appellant William Motion to Modify based on Mr. Scheidler's failure to file an Amended Appellant's Brief in accordance with (1) the Rules of Appellate Procedure (RAPs) and (2) the Court of Appeals' Conditional Ruling of Dismissal. Mr. Scheidler requests that the Court review the Order Denying the Motion to Modify.

III. ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

- A. Whether this Court should deny discretionary review of Division II of the Court of Appeals' May 1, 2014 order denying Mr. Scheidler's Motion to Modify where:
- Mr. Scheidler fails to establish any basis for review under RAP
 13.4;
- Mr. Scheidler fails to show that the Order Denying his Motion to
 Modify conflicts with any Supreme Court decision;
- 3. Mr. Scheidler fails to show that a significant question of law under the Constitution is involved; and
- 4. Mr. Scheidler's petition does not involve an issue of substantial

public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

B. Whether this Court should award Mr. Ellerby his reasonable attorney fees and costs incurred in responding to Mr. Scheidler's frivolous petition for review?

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. The Clerk of the Court of Appeals properly dismissed Mr. Scheidler's appeal pursuant to RAP 18.9(a) and (b).

On October 4, 2013, Mr. Scheidler filed a Notice of Appeal to Supreme Court or Court of Appeals. App. 1, Declaration of Jeffrey P. Downer in Opposition to Appellant's Motion to Modify Ruling dated March 31, 2014, at Ex. 1.

On October 15, 2013, the Court of Appeals issued a notice to Mr. Scheidler and Mr. Ellerby providing due dates for compliance with the RAPs. *Id.* at Ex. 2. The notice provided that Mr. Scheidler's opening brief should be filed 45 days after filing the report of proceedings with the trial court clerk. The report of proceedings was filed on December 24, 2013. *Id.* at ¶ 7. Accordingly, Mr. Scheidler's opening brief was due February 7, 2014.

Mr. Scheidler filed an Opening Brief that did not conform to the content and form requirements set out in the Rules of Appellate Procedure. App. 2, Declaration of Jeffrey P. Downer in Support of Answer to Motion for Discretionary Review dated June 20, 2014, at Ex. 4. Mr. Scheidler's

Opening Brief Aside contained a wide range of procedural defects. It also had no substantive merit, because it was based on Mr. Scheidler's unsubstantiated and frivolous accusations against the Kitsap County Assessor; the Kitsap County Prosecutor's Office; Mr. Ellerby; Mr. Ellerby's counsel; WSBA Disciplinary Counsel; Kitsap County Superior Court Judges Russell Hartman and Kevin Hull; Court of Appeals Judges Penoyar, Alexander, and Johanson; David Ponzoha, Clerk of Division II of the Court of Appeals; and the Clerk of the Supreme Court. Mr. Scheidler alleged fraud and conspiracy. Id. Mr. Scheidler asserted, and continues to assert, that the lawyers, trial court judges, appellate court judges, and Clerks of the Court of Appeals and Supreme Court have conspired against him because he is not a lawyer. Id. Mr. Scheidler's own appeal brief shows that Mr. Scheidler is a serial litigant who continues to ignore the rulings or the trial and appellate courts and to clog the court system with frivolous and unsubstantiated claims at great expense to all involved. Id. He has also filed frivolous claims with the WSBA against Mr. Ellerby and Mr. Ellerby's counsel, and frivolous claims with the Commission on Judicial Conduct against Judge Penovar and Judge Kevin Hull. Id. Mr. Scheidler's claims against Mr. Ellerby, Mr. Ellerby's counsel, Judge Penoyar, and Judge Hull were summarily dismissed. Id. Mr. Scheidler then filed an action against J. Rieko Callner, executive

director of the Commission on Judicial Conduct, based on the dismissal of Mr. Scheidler's frivolous claim against Judge Penoyar. *Id*.

On January 28, 2014, Mr. Scheidler and counsel for Mr. Ellerby received a letter from the Court Clerk for the Court of Appeals stating that Mr. Scheidler's opening brief did not conform to the content and form requirements set out in the Rules of Appellate Procedure. Downer Dec. at Ex. 3. This was the first time Mr. Ellerby learned that Mr. Scheidler had filed an opening brief at all, as Mr. Scheidler did not timely serve Mr. Ellerby with a copy of the opening brief. *Id.* at ¶ 5. The Court of Appeals Clerk informed Mr. Scheidler that he must re-submit the opening brief in accordance with the Rules of Appellate Procedure by February 7, 2014 and attached a sample Appellant's Brief for Mr. Scheidler's consideration. *Id.* at Ex. 3.

On January 29, 2014, Mr. Scheidler responded to the Court Clerk via email as follows:

Ms. Carlson, Mr. Penzoha and Ms. Moreno

To EACH and EVERY ONE of you, provide your address at which you can personally receive 'service of process'

I will not beg for the rights I am entitled. Nor am I going to be forced into long and arduous "motions" due to the whims of Mr. Penzoha. Either my "Opening Brief" is filed and addressed in a civilize [sic] manner, or it is well past time that public servants such as you are forever banished from public service and lawyers and judges are finally made accountable to the people of this state as our

constitution demands.

The Supreme Court makes it clear that "The government's violation of a right protected by substantive due process is actionable at the moment the violation occurs." MISSION SPRINGS v. CITY OF SPOKANE 134 Wn.2d 947, 949 954 P.2d 250

Bill Scheidler

Downer Dec. at Ex. 4. As shown, Mr. Scheidler refused to comply with the Rules of Appellate Procedure as instructed by the Clerk of the Division II of the Court of Appeals. Further, he threatened Mr. Ponzoha with legal action, requested an address by which Mr. Ponzoha could receive "service of process," and now frivolously asserts that Mr. Ponzoha is included in a grand conspiracy to defraud him and deprive him of his perceived rights.

On the same day, the Court of Appeals Clerk responded to Mr. Scheidler via email and reiterated that Mr. Scheidler's opening brief had been rejected for failure to comply with the RAPs and that his appeal is subject to dismissal if he did not file a complying brief by February 7, 2014. *Id.* The Court of Appeals Clerk also provided Mr. Scheidler with an address where he could receive "service of process." *Id.*

Mr. Scheidler did not re-file an opening brief that complied with the RAPs by February 7, 2014, as the Court of Appeals Clerk had instructed. Downer Dec. at Ex. 5. On February 11, 2014, the Court of Appeals Clerk extended the deadline for Mr. Scheidler to file an Amended

Appellant's Brief to February 26, 2014. *Id.* at Ex. 6. The Court of Appeals Clerk informed Mr. Scheidler that failure to file the Amended Appellant's brief by February 26, 2014 would result in a \$200 sanction due on that date and that this court would not accept further filings from Mr. Scheidler until payment of the sanction is made in full. *Id.* The Court of Appeals Clerk further informed Mr. Scheidler that a commissioner would consider a motion for dismissal due to Mr. Scheidler's failure to timely file the Amended Brief, if Mr. Scheidler failed to file the Amended Appellant's Brief by March 3, 2014. Again, Mr. Scheidler refused to file an Amended Appellant's Brief in compliance with the Court of Appeals Clerk's instruction. Downer Dec. at Ex. 5.

On March 7, 2014, the Court of Appeals Clerk issued a Conditional Ruling of Dismissal, which provided Mr. Scheidler yet another grace period of 10 days to file the Amended Appellant's Brief and levied the \$200 sanction for failure to file the Amended Appellant's Brief by February 26, 2014. Downer Dec. at Ex. 7. Again, Mr. Scheidler violated that instruction and failed to file an Amended Brief.

On March 19, 2014, the Clerk issued a Ruling Dismissing the Appeal based on Mr. Scheidler's failure to file an Amended Appellant's Brief as previously ordered in the Conditional Ruling of Dismissal. Downer Dec. at Ex. 8.

B. The Court of Appeals properly denied Mr. Scheidler's Motion to Modify the Ruling Dismissing Appeal.

On March 24, 2014, Mr. Scheidler filed a "Motion to Modify Ruling RAP 17.7," requesting that the Court of Appeals modify the Clerk's Ruling Dismissing Mr. Scheidler's Appeal. App. 2, Declaration of Jeffrey P. Downer in Support of Answer to Motion for Discretionary Review dated June 20, 2014, at Ex. 1. Without any documentation supporting his position, Mr. Scheidler baldly asserted that the Ruling Dismissing Appeal should be modified due to "misconduct" of the Court of Appeals Clerk. *Id*.

On March 31, 2014, Mr. Ellerby submitted an Opposition to Appellant's Motion to Modify Ruling. Mr. Ellerby provided the Court of Appeals with the procedural history detailing Mr. Scheidler's repeated and willful violations of the RAPs and the direction of the Court of Appeals Clerk that led to the Ruling Dismissing Appeal. App. 2 at Ex. 2.

On May 1, 2014, the Court of Appeals denied Mr. Scheidler's Motion to Modify the ruling dismissing the appeal. App. 2 at Ex. 3.

V. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED

A. This Court grants petitions for review in only strict, limited circumstances that RAP 13.4(b) prescribes.

Mr. Scheidler seeks review pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1),(3), and (4). Pursuant to RAP 13.4, a petition for review will be accepted by the

Supreme Court only:

- (1) if the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or...
- (3) if a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

RAP 13.4.

Mr. Scheidler's petition for review should be denied because it fails to satisfy any basis for Supreme Court review.

Furthermore, nothing in RAP 13.4 or in Washington law entitles Mr. Scheidler to review by this Court simply because he disagrees with the Court of Appeals' decision:

[I]t is a mistake for a party seeking review to make the perceived injustice the focus of attention in the petition for review. RAP 13.4(b) says nothing in its criteria about correcting isolated instances of injustice. This is because the Supreme Court, in passing upon petitions for review, is not operating as a court of error. Rather, it is functioning as the highest policy-making judicial body of the state. ...

The Supreme Court's view in evaluating petitions is global in nature. Consequently, the primary focus of a petition for review should be on why there is a compelling need to have the issue or issues presented decided *generally*. The significance of the issues must be shown to transcend the particular application of the law in question. Each of the four alternative criteria of RAP 13.4(b) supports this view. The court accepts review sparingly, only approximately 10 percent of the time. Failure to show the court the "big picture" will likely diminish the already statistically slim prospects of review.

Wash. Appellate Prac. Deskbook § 27.11 (1998) (italics in original).

B. The Order Denying the Motion to Modify does not conflict with a Supreme Court decision.

Mr. Scheidler asserts that the Supreme Court should accept his petition for review because the May 1, 2014 order conflicts with a decision in the Supreme Court. RAP 13.4(b)(1). Specifically, Mr. Scheidler asserts that the Clerk of the Court of Appeals acted "unilaterally, unlawfully, under his self-proclaimed power under his own interpretation of court rules. All being in conflict with the holdings of and rules established by the Supreme Court." Petition for Review at 7. As demonstrated, nothing in this record substantiates Mr. Scheidler's inflammatory attacks on the Clerk. Those attacks have no colorable merit whatsoever. But more importantly, Mr. Scheidler fails to cite any Supreme Court decision in conflict with the Court of Appeals' May 1, 2014 order that would warrant review under RAP 13.4(b)(1).

Courts are vested with "the inherent power to govern court procedures." *State v. Fields*, 85 Wn.2d 126, 129, 530 P.2d 284 (1975). Further, the legislature has authorized the Supreme Court to adopt rules of procedure. *Id.* at 128; RCW 2.04.190. The RAPs that this Court adopted authorize the Court of Appeals Clerk to dismiss a review proceeding as a sanction for a party's violation of a ruling. RAP 18.9(a), (b).

In this case, the Clerk's dismissal of Mr. Scheidler's appeal is in

accordance with RAP 18.9(a) and (b), and is justified by Mr. Scheidler's repeated and willful violations of the RAPs and the direction of the Clerk. Mr. Scheidler failed to file an opening brief in compliance with the Rules of Appellate Procedure. App. 1 at Ex. 3. The Clerk informed Mr. Scheidler of his failure to file a complying brief and provided an example of a complying Appellant's Brief for Mr. Scheidler's consideration. *Id.* Mr. Scheidler responded to the Clerk with accusations, and he stated that he would not "beg" for his perceived rights. *Id.* at Ex. 4. Mr. Scheidler openly violated the Court of Appeals' repeated notices to him that a timely appellant's brief must be filed in compliance with the RAPs. He repeatedly flouted the Clerk's notices that he would be subject to sanctions and his appeal would be subject to dismissal. He refused to pay the sanctions imposed upon him for failure to file a complying opening brief.

The May 1, 2014 Order Denying the Motion to Modify is consistent with the RAPs and does not conflict with any Supreme Court decision. The only Supreme Court authorities Mr. Scheidler cites are two out-of-context quotes from *State v. Schulze*, 116 Wn.2d 154, 161, 804 P.2d 566 (1991) and *City of Fircrest v. Jensen*, 158 Wn.2d 384, 419143 P.3d 776 (2006). Neither case conflicts with the Court of Appeals' authority to dismiss an appeal for a party's repeated, willful failures to

comply with the RAPs and the rulings of the Court of Appeals.

Mr. Scheidler thus fails to establish grounds for review under RAP

13.4(b)(1).

C. The Order Denying the Motion to Modify raises no constitutional question.

Mr. Scheidler claims the Supreme Court should accept his petition for review because the May 1, 2014 order presents a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington. Specifically, Mr. Scheidler asserts that "the unlawful actions by the clerk to terminate review under fallacious claims and vague allegations that Mr. Scheidler's opening brief didn't meet 'formatting' requirements," Petition for Review at 10, obstructed his opportunity to be heard and therefore denied him due process. He asserts that the Clerk, as an officer of the court, had a duty to remedy Mr. Scheidler's noncompliant opening brief because he is a pro se litigant. Id. at 8. However, pro se litigants are held to the same standard as attorneys and must comply with all procedural rules on appeal. Batten v. Abrams, 28 Wn. App. 737, 739 n. 1, 626 P.2d 984 (1981) (nonlawyer who undertakes role of lawyer "assumes the duties and responsibilities [of a lawyer] and is accountable to the same standards of ethics and legal knowledge"). A pro se litigant's violations of the RAPs may preclude review. State v. Marintorres, 93 Wn. App. 442, 452, 969 P.2d 501 (1999).

The correspondence between the Court of Appeals Clerk and the

parties documents (1) that the Clerk provided Mr. Scheidler multiple opportunities to submit an Amended Appellant's Brief in compliance with the RAPs; (2) that the Clerk properly acted within his authority when he imposed sanctions on Mr. Scheidler for repeatedly violating the RAPs; and (3) that the Clerk complied with the notice requirements provided in RAP 18.9 prior to dismissal of the appeal. App. 1 at Exs. 3-8. There is no evidence that Mr. Scheidler's procedural and substantive due process rights were denied. Mr. Scheidler's disagreement with the appellate court's order is insufficient to raise an issue of constitutional magnitude. "Parties raising constitutional issues must present considered arguments." *State v. Johnson*, 119 Wn. 2d 167, 171, 829 P.2d 1082, 1084 (1992). Mr. Scheidler fails to establish grounds for review under RAP 13.4(b)(3).

D. Mr. Scheidler's petition does not raise an issue of substantial public interest.

Mr. Scheidler asserts that this Court should accept his petition for review because the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court. Mr. Scheidler does not explain why any matter expressed in his petition has any ramifications beyond the particular parties and particular facts at issue in this case. The Court of Appeals' decision is an unpublished order and has no precedential value. RCW 2.06.040; *State v. Fitzpatrick*, 5 Wn. App. 661, 668, 491 P.2d 262 (1971) ("unpublished opinions of the Court of Appeals

will not be considered in the Court of Appeals and should not be considered in the trial courts. They do not become a part of the common law of the state of Washington"). "Unpublished opinions ... should not be cited or relied upon in any manner." *Skamania County v. Woodall*, 104 Wn. App. 525, 536 n.11, 16 P.3d 701, *rev. denied* 144 Wn.2d 1021, 34 P.3d 1232 (2001) (citing RAP 10.4(h) (emphasis added)). Therefore, there is no possibility that the Court of Appeals' dismissal of Mr. Scheidler's appeal will affect the public interest by creating supposedly bad precedent, because it is not precedent at all.

Instead, Mr. Scheidler asserts that the legal system needs an immediate overhaul to address the unethical conduct that permeates the legal system. Petition for Review at 12-13. Mr. Scheidler makes unfounded allegations of conspiracy among lawyers who supposedly breach their oaths, judges who supposedly disregard common law precedent to protect the lawyers who breach their oaths, and appellate courts who supposedly "perjure" [sic] pleadings and fabricate facts to protect the "legal establishment." *Id.* at 12. Personal comments regarding a party, opposing counsel, or judge are improper, reflect the lack of merit in the arguments being advanced by the party making them, and insult the court asked to consider them. *Plummer v. Weil*, 15 Wash. 427, 431, 46 P. 648, 649-50 (1896). Mr. Scheidler fails to support any of these

inflammatory and impertinent allegations, and this Court should ignore them. As such, Mr. Scheidler fails to establish grounds for review pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(4).

E. Mr. Scheidler's petition for review is frivolous, and attorney fees should be awarded to Ellerby.

RAP 18.9(a) provides that the appellate court on its own initiative may order a party or counsel that uses these rules for the purpose of delay to pay terms of compensatory damages to any other party who has been harmed by the delay. RAP 18(9) permits an appellate court to award a party its attorney's fees as sanctions, terms, or compensatory damages when the opposing party files a frivolous appellate action. *Reid v. Dalton*, 124 Wn. App. 113, 128, 100 P.3d 349 (2004). An appeal is frivolous if, considering the entire record, the court is convinced that the appeal presents no debatable issues upon which reasonable minds might differ, and the appeal is so devoid of merit that there is no possibility of reversal. *Tiffany Family Trust Corp. v. City of Kent*, 155 Wn.2d 225, 241, 119 P.3d 325 (2005); *Yurtis v. Phipps*, 143 Wn. App. 680, 693, 183 P.3d 849 (2008) (pro se litigant's multiple, frivolous appeals and motions to modify warranted imposition of attorney's fees and costs).

Mr. Ellerby should be awarded his attorney's fees and costs under RAP 18.9. Mr. Scheidler's petition for review is devoid of merit and based on arguments that have been rejected on multiple occasions.

Mr. Scheidler's petition for review appears to be intended to delay

Mr. Ellerby's efforts to obtain the amount of attorney's fees awarded on

remand by the Kitsap County Superior Court. This is precisely the abuse

of the appellate process that RAP 18.9 is intended to deter. Mr. Ellerby

should be awarded his reasonable attorney fees and costs opposing

Mr. Scheidler's petition for review.

VI. CONCLUSION

RAP 13.4 enumerates the four narrow grounds for review by the

Supreme Court. This case presents no such issue for review; Mr. Scheidler

fails to meet the strict standards of RAP 13.4 in any regard. This Court

should deny review and award Mr. Ellerby his reasonable attorney's fees

and costs incurred in responding to the petition for review.